

- Ramadan, Hisham, *Understanding Islamic Law from Classical to Contemporary* (1st edn., USA, Alta Mira Press, 2006)
- Ramadan, Saiyed, *Islamic Law, its Scope and Equity* (1st edn., London, Macmillan, 1960)
- Redfern, Alan and Martin Hunter, *Law and Practice of International Commercial Arbitration* (3rd edn., London, Sweet and Maxwell, 2003)
- Reed, Lucy, Jan Paulsson and Nigel Blackaby, *Guide to ICSID Arbitration* (1st edn., Netherland, Kluwer Law International, 2004)
- Rosen, Lawrence, *The Justice of Islam: Comparative Perspectives on Islamic Law and Society* (1st edn., Oxford, Oxford University Press, 2000)
- Saeed, Abdullah, *Islamic Banking and Interest* (2nd edn., Netherlands, Brill Publishers, 1999)
- Saeed, Abdullah, *Islamic Banking and Interest: A Study of the Prohibition of Riba and its Contemporary Interpretation* (2nd edn., Netherland, Brill Publisher, 1999)
- Sa'ied, Ameen, *The History of the Saudi State* (1st edn., Saudi Arabia, Darat Almalik Abdul-Aziz, 1973)
- Sami, Fawzi, *International Commercial Arbitration in Arab Countries* (1st edn., Amman, Dar Althaqafa lil Nashr wa Altaouze', 2006)
- Samir, Saleh, *Commercial Arbitration in the Arab Middle East: A Study in Shari'a and Statute Law* (1st edn., London, Graham & Trotman, 1984)
- Samir, Saleh, *Commercial Arbitration in the Arab Middle East: Shari'a, Syria, Lebanon and Egypt* (2nd edn., Heart Publishing, 2006)
- Samuel, Geoffrey, *Contract Law: Cases and Materials* (1st edn., London, Sweet and Maxwell, 2007)
- Schabler, B., L. Stenberg and R. Mottahereh, *Globalization and the Muslim World* (1st edn., USA, Syracuse University Press, 2004)
- Shoult, Anthony, *Doing Business with Saudi Arabia* (3rd edn., London, GMB Publishing Ltd, 2006)
- Skovgaard-Petersen, Jakob, *Defining Islam for the Egyptian State: Mufti and Fatwas of the Dar al-Ifta* (1st edn., Netherland, Brill Publishers, 1997)
- Spiro, David, *The Hidden Hand of American Hegemony: Petrodollar Recycling and International Markets* (1st edn., USA, Cornell University Publications, 1999)
- Taher Kurdi, Muhammad, *Altareekh Alqaweem Le Mecca Wa Bait Allah Alkareem* (1st edn., Saudi Arabia, Albaz Publications, 1962)
- Tweeddale, Andrew, *Arbitration of Commercial Disputes: International and English Law and Practice* (1st edn., Oxford, Oxford University Press, 2007)
- Vitalis, Robert, *American's Kingdom: Mythmaking on the Saudi Oil Frontier* (1st edn., USA, Stamford University Press, 2007)
- Vogel, Frank, *Islamic Law and Legal System* (1st edn., Netherland, Brill, 1999)
- Vogel, Frank and Samuel Hayes, *Islamic Law and Finance: Religion, Risk and Return* (1st edn., Kluwer Law International, Netherlands, 1998)

Weiler, Todd, *International Investment Law and Arbitration: Leading Cases from ICSID, NAFTA, Bilateral Treaties and Customary International Law* (1st edn., London, Cameron May, 2005)

Journal Articles and Periodicals

- Abd-Alhaqq, Irshad, 'Islamic Law; An Overview of its Origin and Elements', *Journal of Islamic Law*, 1/1 (1996), pp. 26–31
- Abd-Alhaqq, Irshad, 'Legal Injunctions of the Quran', *Journal of Islamic Law*, 2 (1997), pp. 53–64
- Abd-Alhaqq, Irshad, 'Islamic Law: An Overview of its Origin and Elements', *Journal of Islamic Law and Culture*, 7/1 (2002), pp. 27–54
- Affaki, Bachir G., 'Demand Guarantees in the Arab Middle East', *Journal of International Banking Law*, 12 (1997), pp. 271–76
- Aggarwal, Rajesh K. and Tarik Yousef, 'Islamic Banks and Investment Financing', *Journal of Money, Credit and Banking*, 32/1 (February 2000), pp. 93–120
- Alameldin, Mohieldin I., 'Banking Disputes in Saudi Arabia', *International Financial Law Review*, 10 (1991), pp. 36–38
- Al-Baharna, Husain M., 'International Commercial Arbitration in Perspective', *Arab Law Quarterly*, 3 (1988), pp. 3–18
- Al-Bashir, Muhammad and Muhammad Al-Amine, 'Istisna' and its Application in Islamic Banking', *Arab Law Quarterly*, 16 (2001), pp. 22–48
- Algari, Ibrahim H., 'The Formation of the Contract in Islamic Shari'a', *Ministry of Justice of Saudi Arabia Journal*, 11 (2001), pp. 1–13
- Al-Ghadyan, Ahmed A., 'The Judiciary in Saudi Arabia', *Arab Law Quarterly*, 13 (1998), pp. 235–51
- Alhammad, Hammad A., 'Wakalah Contract in Shari'a and its Applications in the Saudi Law', *Al-Adl Journal*, 23 (2005), pp. 129–66
- Alhamoud, Ibrahim, 'Conciliation in Commercial Disputes and its Applications'. A paper represented at the Conference on arbitration and Conciliation, Taif, Saudi Arabia (15-16/05/1424 H. 2004)
- Aljofan, Nasir M., 'Publicity of Court Proceedings in Saudi Arabia', *Al-Adl Journal*, 5 (2000), pp. 10–38
- Aljuhani, Eid M., 'The New Saudi Arbitration Act', *Riyadh Chamber of Commerce and Industry Magazine*, 1 (1985), pp. 22–30
- Al-Jumah, Khaled M., 'Arab State Contract Disputes: Lessons from the Past', *Arab Law Quarterly*, 17 (2002), pp. 215–40
- Al-Kenain, Abdullah, 'Tadween Almorafa'a Alqadaiyah', *Al-Adl Journal*, 2 (1999), pp. 76–115
- Alkhadimi, Nooraddin M., 'Makasid Altashree': Mafhomha, Daroratha, Thawabetoha', *Al-Adl Journal*, 6 (2000), pp. 1–27
- Alkhenain, Abdullah M., 'Contracts Involving Uncertainty', *Al-Adl Journal*, 13 (2002), pp. 170–73

- Al-Masri, Rafic Y., 'Are all Forms of Interest Prohibited?', *King Abdul-Aziz University Journal of Islamic Economics*, 17/1 (2004), pp. 37–41
- Al-Muhairi, Butti, 'Islamisation and Modernisation within the UAE Penal Law: Shari'a in the Pre-modern Period', *Arab Law Quarterly*, 10 (1995), pp. 287–309
- Al-Muhairi, Butti, 'The Position of Shari'a within the UAE Constitution and the Federal Supreme Court's Application of the Constitutional Clause concerning Shari'a', *Arab Law Quarterly*, 11 (1996), pp. 219–44
- Alonaizan, Tameem, 'Conciliation Before and After the Death of the Victim', *Al-Adl Journal*, 7 (2000), pp. 1–29
- Aloraini, Ahmad, 'Conciliation in Criminal Matters', *Al-Adl Journal*, 8 (2001), pp. 1–23
- Alqurashi, Zeyad, 'Arbitration under the Islamic Shari'a', *Oil, Gas and Energy Intelligence*, 1/2 (March 2003), pp. 30–44
- Alroshoud, Ksaed S., 'Altaheem Altijari fe Almamlakah Alarabiya Alsaudia wa Tatbiqatoh fe Alqada', *Al-Adl Journal*, 52 (2004), pp. 52–85
- Al-Samman, Yahiya, 'The Settlement of Foreign Investment Disputes by Means of Domestic Arbitration in Saudi Arabia', *Arab Law Quarterly*, 9 (1994), pp. 217–20
- Alwethainani, Khalid Z., 'Securities Pledging in Shari'a', *Al-Adl Journal*, 28 (2006), pp. 86–122
- Ambrose, Clare, 'Arbitration and the Free Movement of Judgments', *Arbitration International*, 19/1 (2003), pp. 3–27
- Amin, S.H., 'An Islamic Approach to International Commercial Arbitration', *Journal of Islamic Law*, 1 (1996), pp. 203–36
- Angell, Nicholas B., and Gray R. Feulner, 'Arbitration of Disputes in the United Arab Emirates', *Arab Law Quarterly*, 3 (1988), pp. 19–32
- Arab, Hassan, 'Execution of Foreign Judgments in the UAE', *Arab Law Quarterly*, 17 (2002), pp. 208–11
- Arabi, Oussama, 'Contract Stipulations (Shurut) in Islamic Law: The Ottoman Majalla and Ibn Taymiyya', *International Journal of Middle East Studies*, 30/1 (February 1998), pp. 29–50
- Arabi, Oussama, 'Orienting the Gaze: Marcel Morand and the Codification of Le Droit Musulman Algerien', *Journal of Islamic Studies*, 11/1 (2000), pp. 43–72
- Arrawi, Abduljalil, 'Principles of the Islamic Law on Contracts', *George Washington Law Review*, 36 (1953), pp. 32–36
- Baamir, Abdulrahman, 'Issues of Disclosure and Transparency in the Saudi Stock Market', *Arab Law Quarterly*, 22 (2008), pp. 63–87
- Baamir, Abdulrahman and Ilias Bantekas, 'Saudi Law as *Lex Arbitri*: Evaluation of Saudi Arbitration Law and Judicial Practice', *Arbitration International*, 25/2 (2009), pp. 239–70
- Bakhashab, Omar, 'Extraterritoriality in the Saudi Arbitration Act', *King Abdul-Aziz University Journal*, 14/1 (2000), pp. 152–64

- Ballantyne, W.M., 'Arbitration in the Gulf States: "Delocalisation": A Short Comparative Study', *Arab Law Quarterly*, 1 (1985–1986), pp. 205–15
- Ballantyne, W.M., 'The States of the GCC: Sources of Law. The Shari'a and the Extent to which it Applies', *Arab Law Quarterly*, 3 (1986), pp. 1–18
- Ballantyne, W.M., 'Syndicated Loans', *Arab Law Quarterly*, 11 (1996), pp. 372–82
- Berger, Klaus P., 'International Arbitral Practice and the UNIDROIT Principles of International Commercial Contracts', *American Journal of Comparative Law*, 46 (1998), pp. 129–50
- Berger, Maurits S., 'Conflicts of Law and Public Policy in Egyptian Family Law: Islamic Law through the Backdoor', *American Journal of Comparative Law*, 50 (2002), pp. 555–94
- Blanchard, Christopher M., 'The Islamic Tradition of Wahhabism and Salafiyya', *Congressional Research Service Report for Congress*, submitted on (17/01/2007). Available online at <<http://www.fas.org/sgp/crs/misc/RS21695.pdf>> [accessed 17 July 2009]
- Boshoff, L.L., 'Saudi Arabia: Arbitration vs. Litigation', *Arab Law Quarterly*, 1 (1985–1986), pp. 299–311
- Brand, Joseph L., 'Aspects of Saudi Arabian Law and Practice', *Boston College International and Comparative Law Review*, 9/1 (1986), pp. 1–46
- Brower, Charles N. and Jeremy K. Sharpe, 'International Commercial Arbitration and the Islamic World: The Third Phase', *American Journal of International Law*, 97 (2003), pp. 643–56
- Brown, Nathan J., 'Sharia and State in the Modern Muslim Middle East', *International Journal of Middle East Studies*, 29/3 (August 1997), pp. 359–76
- Busse, Daniel, 'Privity to an Arbitration Agreement', *International Arbitration Law Review*, 8/3 (2005), pp. 95–102
- Carballo, Alejandro, 'The Law of the Dubai International Financial Centre: Common Law Oasis or Mirage within the UAE?', *Arab Law Quarterly*, 21 (2007), pp. 91–104
- Carbonneau, Thomas E., 'The Ballad of Transborder Arbitration', *University of Miami Law Review*, 56/4 (July 2002), pp. 773–830
- Childress, Carol L., 'Saudi Arabian Contract Law: A Comparative Perspective', *St Thomas Law Forum*, 2 (1990), pp. 69–96
- Chsenwald, W.O., 'Saudi Arabia and the Islamic Revival', *International Journal for Middle East Studies*, 13 (1981), pp. 271–72
- Clinton, Robert L., 'Game Theory, Legal History, and the Origins of Judicial Review: A Revisionist Analysis of *Marbury v. Madison*', *American Journal of Political Science*, 38/2 (May 1994), pp. 285–302
- Comair-Obeid, Nayla, 'Particularity of the Contract's Subject Matter in the Law of the Arab Middle East', *Arab Law Quarterly*, 11 (1996), pp. 331–49
- Contini, Paolo, 'International Commercial Arbitration: The United Nations Convention on the Recognition and Enforcement of Foreign Arbitral Awards', *American Journal of Comparative Law*, 8 (1959), pp. 283–309

- Delaume, George, 'State Contracts and Transnational Arbitration', *American Journal of International Law*, 75 (1981), pp. 784–819
- Delaume, Georges R., 'ICSID Arbitration and the Courts', *American Journal of International Law*, 77/4 (1983), pp. 784–803
- Dimitrakopoulos, Antonios, 'Arbitration Practice in the UAE', *Arab Law Quarterly*, 16 (2001), pp. 389–403
- Diwan, Ricky H., 'Problems Associated with the Enforcement of Arbitral Awards', *Arbitration International*, 19/1 (2003), pp. 55–67
- Duguid, Stephen, 'A Biographical Approach to the Study of Social Change in the Middle East: Abdullah Tariki as a New Man', *International Journal of Middle East Studies*, 1/3 (1970), pp. 195–220
- El-Malik, El-Walied M., 'Minerals Investment under Shari'a Law', *Arab Law Quarterly*, 6 (1993), pp. 106–40
- El Mallakh, R., 'Challenge of Affluence: Abu Dhabi', *Middle East Journal*, 24/2 (1970), pp. 135–38
- Fadel, Hossam, 'The Islamic Viewpoint on New Assisted Reproductive Technology', *Fordham Urban Law Journal*, 30 (2002), pp. 148–50
- Farhad, Noman, 'The Problem of Interest and Islamic Banking in a Comparative Perspective: The Case of Egypt, Iran and Pakistan', *Review of Middle East Economics and Finance*, 1/1 (2003), pp. 37–70
- Ford, Christopher A., 'Siyar-ization and its Discontent: International Law and Islam's Constitutional Crisis', *Texas International Law Journal*, 30 (1995), pp. 499–533
- Franck, Susan, 'The Liability of International Arbitrators: A Comparative Analysis and Proposal for Qualified Immunity', *New York Law School Journal of International and Comparative Law*, 20/1 (2000), pp. 1–59
- Franck, Susan, 'The Legitimacy Crisis in Investment Treaty Arbitration: Privatizing Public International Law through Inconsistent Decisions', *Fordham Law Journal*, 73 (2005), pp. 1521–1625
- Freeman Jalet, Frances T., 'Judicial Review of Arbitration: The Judicial Attitude', *Cornell Law Quarterly*, 45 (1959–1960), pp. 519–57
- Gaupp, Dirk, 'A Brief Overview of Secular Turkey's Framework for Islamic Banking and Finance Transactions: Basis for Big Business or Negligible Side Issue?', *Journal of International Banking Law and Regulation*, 23/2 (2008), pp. 90–95
- Gotanda, John Y., 'Awarding Interest in International Arbitration', *American Journal of International Law*, 90/1 (January 1996), pp. 40–63
- Habachy, Saba, 'Property, Right, and Contract in Muslim Law', *Columbia Law Review*, 62 (1962), pp. 450–73
- Habachy, Saba, 'Commentary on the Decision of the Supreme Court of Egypt given on 4 May 1985 Concerning the Legitimacy of Interest and the Constitutionality of Article 226 of the New Egyptian Civil Code of 1948', *Arab Law Quarterly*, 1 (1985), pp. 239–41

- Haberbeck, Andreas, 'Risk Sharing in an Islamic Society', *Arab Law Quarterly*, 2 (1987), pp. 138–47.
- Hallaq, Wael B., 'On the Origins of the Controversy about the Existence of Mujtahids and the Gate of Ijtihad', *Studia Islamica*, 63 (1986), pp. 129–44
- Hamid, M.E., 'Islamic Law of Contract or Contracts', *Journal of Islamic and Comparative Law*, 3 (1969), pp. 1–11
- Hammad, Nazeeh, 'Adhesion Contracts in the Islamic Jurisprudence', *Al-Adl Journal*, 24 (2005), pp. 51–78
- Hammad, Nazeeh, 'The Law on the Case of More than Multi Obligations in the Contract', *Al-Adl Journal*, 27 (2006), pp. 74–108
- Hanson, Maren, 'The Influence of French Law on the Legal Development of Saudi Arabia', *Arab Law Quarterly*, 2 (1987), pp. 272–91
- Hassan, Hussein, 'Contracts In Islamic Law: The Principles of Commutative Justice and Liberality', *Journal of Islamic Studies*, 13/3 (2002), pp. 257–97
- Hoyt, Mont P. and R. Doak Bishop, 'International Dispute Resolution: Drafting Mediation, Choice of Forum and Arbitration Clauses', *International Energy Law & Taxation Review*, 1 (2000), pp. 7–15
- Hurvitz, Nimrod, 'Schools of Law and Historical Context: Re-Examining the Formation of the Hanbali Madhhab', *Journal of Islamic Law and Society*, 7/1 (2000), pp. 37–64
- Jobst, Andreas A., 'Derivatives in Islamic Finance', *Journal of Islamic Economic Studies*, 15/1 (2007), pp. 1–32
- Jobst, Andreas A., 'The Economics of Islamic Finance and Securitization', *Journal of Structured Finance*, 13/1 (2007), pp. 1–35
- Kahn-Freund, O., 'On Uses and Misuses of Comparative Law', *Modern Law Review*, 37/1 (1974), 1–27
- Karakayali, Nedim, 'The Uses of the Stranger: Circulation, Arbitration, Secrecy, and Dirt', *Sociological Theory*, 24/4 (December 2006), pp. 312–30
- Karl, D.J., 'Islamic Law in Saudi Arabia: What Foreign Attorneys Should Know', *Geo Wash J Intl Law & Economics*, 25 (1991), pp. 131–70
- Kelly, J.B., 'The Buraimi Oasis Dispute', *Journal of International Affairs*, 32/3 (July 1956), pp. 318–24
- Khan, Hamid M., 'Nothing is Written: Fundamentalism, Revivalism, Reformism and the Fate of Islamic Law', *Michigan Journal of International Law*, 24 (2002–2003), pp. 273–345
- Kissam, Leo T. and Edmond K. Leach, 'Sovereign Expropriation of Property and Abrogation of Concession Contracts', *Fordham Law Review*, 28 (1959–1960), pp. 177–200
- Koraytem, Thabet, 'The Islamic Nature of the Saudi Regulations for Companies', *Arab Law Quarterly*, 15 (2000), pp. 63–69
- Kreindler, Richard H., 'An Overview of the Arbitration Rules of the Recently Established GCC Commercial Arbitration Centre, Bahrain', *Arab Law Quarterly*, 12 (1997), pp. 3–25

- Kula, Erhun, 'Is Contemporary Interest Rate in Conflict with Islamic Ethics?', *Kyklos International Review for Social Sciences*, 61/1 (2008), pp. 45–49
- Kutty, Faisal, 'The Shari'a Factor in International Commercial Arbitration', *Loyola of Los Angeles International and Comparative Law Review*, 28 (2006), pp. 565–624
- Kwan, James and Emma Teale, 'Arbitration in the United Arab Emirates: The Traps, the Tricks and Tips for the Unwary', *International Arbitration Law Review*, 9/4 (2006), pp. 95–99
- Lalive, Jean-Flavien, 'Recent Version: Abrogation or Alteration of an Economic Development Agreement between a State and a Private Foreign Party', *The Business Lawyer*, 17 (1961–1962), pp. 434–68
- Lalive, Jean-Flavien, 'Contracts between a State or a State Agency and a Foreign Company. Theory and Practice: Choice of Law and a New Arbitration Case', *International and Comparative Law Quarterly*, 18 (July 1964), pp. 987–1021
- Layish, Aharon, 'Saudi Arabian Legal Reform as a Mechanism to Moderate Wahhabi Doctrine', *Journal of the American Oriental Society*, 107/2 (April–June 1987), pp. 279–92
- Lombardi, Clark B. and Nathan J. Brown, 'Do Constitutions Requiring Adherence to Shari'a Threaten Human Rights? How Egypt's Constitutional Court Reconciles Islamic Law with the Liberal Rule of Law', *American University International Law Review*, 21 (2006), pp. 379–436
- Looney, Robert, 'Development Strategies for Saudi Arabia: Escaping the Rentier State Syndrome', *Strategic Insights*, 3/3 (March 2004). Available online at <<http://www.ccc.nps.navy.mil/si/2004/mar/looneyMar04.pdf>> [accessed 10 May 2009]
- Mahassni, Hassan, and Neal F. Grenley, 'Public Sector Dispute Resolution in Saudi Arabia: Procedures and Practices of Saudi Arabia's Administrative Court', *The International Lawyer*, 21/3 (1987), pp. 827–44
- Makdisi, John, 'Legal Logic and Equity in Islamic Law', *American Journal of Comparative Law*, 33 (1985), pp. 63–78
- Mallat, Chibli, 'Commercial Law in the Middle East: Between Classical Transactions and Modern Business', *American Journal of Comparative Law*, 48 (2000), pp. 81–142
- Mallat, Chibli, 'From Islamic to Middle Eastern Law: A Restatement of the Field (part 1)', *American Journal of Comparative Law*, 51 (2003), pp. 699–719
- Mallat, Chibli, 'From Islamic to Middle Eastern Law: A Restatement of the Field (part 2)', *American Journal of Comparative Law*, 52 (2004), pp. 209–86
- McMillen, Michael J.T., 'Islamic Shari'ah-Compliant Project Finance: Collateral Security and Financing Structure Case Study', *Fordham International Law Journal*, 24 (2000–2001), pp. 1184–1263
- Messick, Brinkley, 'The Mufti, the Text and the World: Legal Interpretation in Yemen', *Man, New Series*, 21/1 (1986), pp. 102–19
- Meyer-Reumann, Rolf, 'The Banking System in Saudi Arabia', *Arab Law Quarterly*, 10 (1995), pp. 207–37

- Mistelis, Loukas, 'Regulatory Aspects: Globalization, Harmonization, Legal Transplants, and Law Reform – Some Fundamental Observations', *The International Lawyer*, 34 (2000), pp. 1055–1070
- Mohd, Habib and Sharif Al-Mulla, 'Conventions of Enforcement of Foreign Judgments in the Arab States', *Arab Law Quarterly*, 14 (1999), pp. 33–56.
- Moore, Michael M., 'International Arbitration between States and Foreign Investors – The World Bank Convention', *Stanford Law Review*, 18 (1965–1966), pp. 1359–80
- Nerz, Alexander, 'The Structuring of an Arbitration Clause in a Contract with a Saudi Party', *Arab Law Quarterly*, 1 (1985–1986), pp. 380–87
- Noor, Mohammed, 'Principles of Islamic Contract Law', *Journal of Law and Religion*, 6 (1988), pp. 115–30
- Noorzoy, M. Siddieq, 'Islamic Laws on Riba (Interest) and their Economic Implications', *International Journal of Middle East Studies*, 14/1 (February 1982), pp. 3–17
- Obeid, Comair, 'Particularity of the Contract's Subject-Matter in the Laws of the Arab Middle East', *Arab Law Quarterly*, 11 (1996), pp. 331–36
- Ochsenwald, William, 'Saudi Arabia and the Islamic Revival', *International Journal of Middle East Studies*, 13/3 (August 1981), pp. 271–86
- Paul, Michell M., 'Arbitrability of Copyright Disputes: *Desputeaux v. Les Editions Choutte*. (Comments)', *Canadian Business Law Journal*, 38 (2003), pp. 125–49
- Peters Hamlin, Kristan L., 'The Impact of Islamic Revivalism on Contract and Usury Law in Iran, Saudi Arabia, and Egypt', *Texas International Law Journal*, 22 (1987), pp. 352–79
- Ragib, Wajdi, 'Is Arbitration a type of Litigation?', *University of Kuwait Law Journal*, 17/1 (1993), pp. 131–72
- Roy, Kristin T., 'The New York Convention and Saudi Arabia: Can a Country use the Public Policy Defence to Refuse Enforcement of Non-Domestic Arbitral Awards?', *Fordham International Law Journal*, 18 (1994–1995), pp. 920–26
- Rutledge, Peter B., 'Toward a Contractual Approach for Arbitral Immunity', *Georgian Law Review*, 39 (2004–2005), pp. 151–214
- Saeed, Abdullah, 'Ijtihād and Innovation in Neo-Modernist Islamic Thought in Indonesia', *Islam and Christian-Muslim Relations*, 8/3 (1997), pp. 279–95
- Saleh, Nabil, 'The Law Governing Contracts in Arabia', *International and Comparative Law Quarterly*, 38 (1989), pp. 761–87
- Saleh, Nabil, 'Definition and Formation of Contract under Islamic and Arab Laws', *Arab Law Quarterly*, 5 (1990), pp. 101–16
- Saleh, Samir, 'The Recognition and Enforcement of Foreign Arbitral Awards in the States of the Arab Middle East', *Arab Law Quarterly*, 1 (1985–1986), pp. 19–31
- Sayen, George, 'Arbitration, Conciliation and the Islamic Legal Tradition in Saudi Arabia', *University of Pennsylvania Journal of International Business Law*, 9/2 (1987), pp. 211–27

- Schacht, Joseph, 'Islamic Law in Contemporary States', *American Journal of Comparative Law*, 8 (1959), pp. 133–36
- Schacht, Joseph, 'Problems of Modern Islamic Legislation', *Studia Islamica*, 12 (1960), pp. 99–129
- Schwebel, Stephen M. and J. Gillis Wetter, 'Arbitration and the Exhaustion of the Local Remedies', *American Journal of International Law*, 60 (1966), pp. 484–501
- Seriki, Hakeem, 'Substantive or Procedural: An Arbitration Perspective', *International Arbitration Law Review*, 9/1 (2006), pp. 24–32
- Sfeir, George, 'The Saudi Approach to Law Reform', *American Journal of Comparative Law*, 36 (1988), pp. 729–44
- Sfeir, George N., 'An Islamic Conseil D'Etat: Saudi Arabia Board of Grievances', *Arab Law Quarterly*, 4 (1989), pp. 128–37
- Shackleton, Stewart R., 'Annual Review of English Judicial Decisions on Arbitration – 2000', *International Arbitration Law Review*, 4/6 (2001), pp. 178–201
- Shackleton, Stewart R., 'Annual Review of English Judicial Decisions on Arbitration – 2002', *International Arbitration Law Review*, 6/6 (2003), pp. 220–36
- Shepard, William E., 'Islam and Ideology: Towards a Typology', *International Journal of Middle East Studies*, 19/3 (August 1987), pp. 307–35
- Shihata, Ibrahim F., 'Some Trends in Banking Law and their Relevance to the GCC States', *Arab Law Quarterly*, 13 (1998), pp. 303–35
- Siddiqi, Mohammad N., 'Riba, Bank Interest and the Rationale of its Prohibition', Visiting Scholars' Research Series, No. 2, Islamic Development Bank, Jeddah, Saudi Arabia (2004)
- Sole, Juan, 'Introducing Islamic Banking into Conventional Banking System', IMF Working Paper No. WP/07/175, International Monetary Fund (2007)
- Sylla, Richard, 'Financial Systems and Economic Modernization', *Journal of Economic History*, 62 (2002), pp. 277–92
- Tamimi, Hind, 'Interest under the UAE Law and as Applied by the Courts of Abu Dhabi', *Arab Law Quarterly*, 17 (2002), pp. 50–52
- Tavender QC, E.D.D., 'Considerations of Fairness in the Context of International Commercial Arbitrations', *Alberta Law Review*, 34/3 (1996), pp. 509–45
- Taylor, J. Michael, 'Islamic Commercial Banking – Moving into the Mainstream?', *The Transnational Lawyer*, 18 (2004–2005), pp. 417–30
- Time Magazine*, 'Time Clock', 15 February 1954
- Truck, Nancy B., 'Resolution of Disputes in Saudi Arabia', *Arab Law Quarterly*, 6 (1991), pp. 6–32
- Umm Alqura Gazette*, issue No. 64 dated 5/9/1344 H (1926)
- Umm Alqura Gazette*, issue No. 140 dated 21/02/1346 H (1927)
- Umm Alqura Gazette*, issue No. 143 dated 13/03/1346 (1927)
- Umm Alqura Gazette*, issue No. 144 dated 20/03/1346 (1927)
- Umm Alqura Gazette*, issue No. 374 dated 22/03/1350 H. (1931)

- Umm Alqura Gazette*, issue No. 375 dated 22/03/1350 H. (1931)
Umm Alqura Gazette, issue No. 376 dated 22/03/1350 H. (1931)
Umm Alqura Gazette, issue No. 1698 dated 06/06/1377 H. (1957)
Umm Alqura Gazette, issue No. 2010 dated 15/10/1383 H. (1963)
Umm Alqura Gazette, issue No. 2010 dated 15/10/1383 H. (1963)
Umm Alqura Gazette, issue No. 2126 dated 05/03/1386 H. (1966)
Umm Alqura Gazette, issue No. 2969 dated 22/08/1403 H (1983)
Umm Alqura Gazette, issue No. 3069 dated 10/10/1405 H (1985)
Umm Alqura Gazette, issue No. 3397 dated 02/09/1412 H. (1992)
Umm Alqura Gazette, issue No. 3811 dated 17/06/1421 (2000)
Umm Alqura Gazette, issue No. 3867 dated 17/08/1422 H. (2001)
Umm Alqura Gazette, issue No. 3981 dated 07/01/1425 H. (2004)
Umm Alqura Gazette, issue No. 3990 dated 15/03/1425 H. (04/05/2005)
Umm Alqura Gazette, issue No. 4170 dated 30/09/1428 H. (2007)
- Weiss, Bernard, 'Interpretation in Islamic Law: The Theory of Ijtihad', *American Journal of Comparative Law*, 26 (1977–1978), pp. 199–212
- White, Robin C.A., 'Expropriation of the Libyan Oil Concessions: Two Conflicting International Arbitrations', *International and Comparative Law Quarterly*, 30 (1981), pp. 1–19
- Wohidulislam, Muhammad, 'Dissolution of Contract in Islamic Law', *Arab Law Quarterly*, 13 (1998), pp. 336–68
- World Trade Organization, 'Report of the Working Party on the Accession of the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia to the World Trade Organization' (WT/ACC/SAU/61, 1 November 2005)
- Zahraa, Mahdi, 'The Legal Capacity of Women in Islamic Law', *Arab Law Quarterly*, 11 (1996), pp. 245–63
- Zahraa, Mahdi, 'Negotiating Contracts in Islamic and Middle Eastern Law', *Arab Law Quarterly*, 13 (1998), pp. 265–77

Electronic References

- HeinOnline, <www.heinonline.org> [accessed 17 July 2009]
- Ibn Hisham, *Seerat Ibn Hisham* (Ministry of Islamic Affairs, Saudi Arabia), <www.al-islam.com> [accessed 21 May 2009]
- Jstore, <www.jstore.org> [accessed 11 July 2009]
- King Fahd Complex for the Printing of the Holy Quran, <www.qurancomplex.org> [accessed 12 July 2009]
- LexisNexis, <www.lexisnexis.co.uk> [accessed 26 April 2009]
- Ministry of Commerce and Industry, Saudi Arabia, <www.commerce.gov.sa> [accessed 27 January 2009]
- Ministry of Finance, Saudi Arabia, <www.mof.gov.sa> [accessed 1 April 2009]
- Ministry of Islamic Affairs, Saudi Arabia, <www.al-islam.com> [accessed 12 June 2009]

- Ministry of Justice, Saudi Arabia, <www.moj.gov.sa> [accessed 5 July 2009]
- Ministry of Petroleum and Mineral wealth, Saudi Arabia, <www.mopm.gov.sa> [accessed 26 November 2008]
- Saudi Arabian Oil Company, <www.saudiaramco.com> [accessed 18 September 2008]
- Saudi Aramco, <www.aramco.com> [accessed 18 April 2008]
- Saudi Lawyers, <www.mohamoon-ksa.com> [accessed 11 June 2009]
- The Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI), USA, <www.fbi.gov> [accessed 26 February 2009]
- The GCC Commercial Arbitration Centre, <www.gcac.biz/en> [accessed 30 April 2008]
- The International Centre for Settlement of Investment Disputes (ICSID), <www.worldbank.org/icsid> [accessed 26 April 2009]
- The International Chamber of Commerce, <www.iccwbo.org> [accessed 14 July 2009]
- The Legal Database of the Gulf Cooperation Council, <www.gcc-legal.org> [accessed 5 January 2009]
- The Saudi Arabia General Investment Agency (SAGIA), <www.sagia.gov.sa> [accessed 14 June 2009]
- The Saudi Arabian Monetary Agency, <www.sama.gov.sa> [accessed 8 June 2009]
- The Supreme Constitutional Court, Egypt, <www.hccourt.gov.eg> [accessed 14 July 2008]
- The US Department of State, USA, <www.state.gov> [accessed 1 May 2009]
- Westlaw, <www.westlaw.co.uk> [accessed 15 July 2009]
- World Trade Organization (WTO), <www.wto.org> [accessed 11 October 2008]

This page has been left blank intentionally

Index

- Abdul-Aziz, King, 17–18, 30, 143–4, 146
Abdulwahhad, Muhammed ben (the Sheikh), 25–7, 29
adalah, arbitrators as having, 80
administration fees, 84
admission (iqrar), 86
age of majority, 63–4, 65
agreement between arbitrators, 93
agreements, arbitration, 73–4
Al-Sanhury, Abdulrazzq, 75
Al Tirigi, Abdullah, 108
Al-Ya'qoubi, 45
alahiyah *see* legal capacity
Almahkama Al'olia (High Court), 20–1
Almajlis Al'ali Lilqada' (High Council of the Judiciary), 20
almasaleh almursalah, 12, 146
Almoghni (Ibn Qodamah), 49
Almuwatt'a (Malik Ben Anas), 16
Aloqoud Aljai'za, 72
Alqiyas, 11
Alshafi'e, Muhammad ben Idri's, 16–17
Altawarrouq transactions, 71
apparent qiyas, 12
appeals, 92
appearance of parties, 129–30
application of laws, 77–8
 Aramco v. Saudi Arabia, 102–4
appointment of arbitrators, 83, 122
aqd, 67
Arabian American Oil Company (Aramco), 97
 see also Aramco v. Saudi Arabia
Arabic as official language for proceedings, 133
Aramco v. Saudi Arabia
 applicable law, 102–4
 Aramco's rejection of Onassis Agreement, 100
 background, 99–100
 impact on arbitration in Saudi Arabia, 107–9
 lack of experience as factor in, 106–7
 nominate/innominate contracts, 70
 Petroleum Development Ltd v. Sheikh of Abu Dhabi cited in, 106
 referee's knowledge, 105
 Saudi government's position, 101–2
 transport rights in 1933 agreement, 105–6
arbitral awards
 appeals, 92
 challenging, 91–2
 content of, 91
 enforcement of, 138–42
 making, 135–8
 nature of, 91
 revocation of, 92
 unanimity of, 93, 137
arbitration
 agreements, 73–4
 agreements in financial transactions, 159
 change in government attitude from 1970s, 109–11
 clauses, 7–54
 under Code of Commercial Courts of 1931, 96–7
 and conciliation, 60, 155
 contract law in relation to, 66–7
 contractual nature of, 60
 definitions under fiqh, 58–9
 distinguished from litigation, 57–8, 135
 early forms of, 1
 in early stages of Islamic law, 48–52
 first attempt at codification of rules, 1–2
 impact of *Aramco v. Saudi Arabia*, 107–9
 lack of clarity concerning, 186
 legal status under Shari'a, 59–61

- outside Saudi Arabia, 127–8
- in the pre-Islamic era, 45–7
- prior to oil boom, 96–8
- during Prophet Muhammad's time, 52–5
- in the Quran, 48–51
- Saudi team, 115
- scope of, 75–7, 119
- seat of the, 93
- settlement of disputes in Saudi Arabia, 170–5
- in the Sunna, 51–2
- see also* Implementing Rules of the Arbitration Act of 1983; international arbitration
- Arbitration Act of 1983, 39, 66, 111, 117–18, 148–9
- see also* Implementing Rules of the Arbitration Act of 1983
- arbitrators
 - in absentia* judgements, 90
 - agreement between, 93
 - appointment of, 73, 83, 122
 - differences to judges, 58
 - impartiality of, 89–90
 - knowledge of, 89, 121
 - list of licensed, 122
 - number of, 83, 121
 - qualifications of, 78–82, 121–2, 122–3
 - remuneration of, 83–4
 - residence of, 121–2
 - termination of office, 84–5
- authority, supervisory
 - banking disputes, 152
 - over proceedings, 124–6
- Auxirap agreement of 1965, 98
- awards, arbitral *see* arbitral awards
- banking
 - arbitrability of disputes, 153–4
 - arbitration clauses in, 159–61
 - authority over disputes, 152
 - Committee for the Settlement of Banking Disputes, 179–84
 - committees for settling disputes, 153
 - conciliation in disputes, 157–9
 - disputes in neighbouring countries, 175–9
 - disputes under Saudi legal system, 51–3
 - interest charging under regulations of, 168–70
 - international arbitration, 160–1
 - international transactions, 173–5
 - lack of clarity concerning disputes, 186
 - scope of under Saudi law, 151–2
 - settlement of disputes in Saudi Arabia, 170–5
 - see also* interest, bank
- Banking Control Law of 1966, 51–2
- Baz, Abdul-Aziz ben, Sheikh, 29
- bilateral investment agreements, 114
- blindness as obstacle to arbitrator role, 81
- Board of Grievances *see* Diwan Almazalim (Board of Grievances)
- bribery of judges, 89–90
- Buraimi Oasis case, 95
- California-Arabian Standard Oil Company (Casoc), 97
- cancellation of contracts, 69–70, 70n55
- capacity, legal *see* legal capacity
- Capital Market Law, 39–40
- chairman's responsibilities, 132
- clauses, arbitration, 74–5
 - in banking, 159–61
 - Implementing Rules of the Arbitration Act of 1983, 120–1, 123–6
 - in oil concession agreements, 97–8
- clerk of the authority, role of, 126, 127
- Code of Commercial Courts of 1931, 30, 33, 96–7
- codes connected with commercial disputes
 - Capital Market Law, 39–40
 - Commercial Mortgage Law, 40
 - Company Law, 36–9
 - Competition Law, 35–6
 - Law of Copyright, 34–5
 - Law of Procedure before Shari'a Courts, 39
 - Law of Trademarks, 33
- codification
 - of Shari'a arbitration rules, 1–2
 - of Shari'a law, 13–15
- commerce, first regulation of, 32–3
- commercial disputes

- conciliation in, 157–9
 - see also* banking
- Commercial Mortgage Law, 40
- Commercial Paper Committee, 22, 184–5
- Committee for the Settlement of Banking Disputes, 23, 162, 164, 169, 179–84, 186, 187
- Committee for the Settlement of Negotiable Instruments Disputes, 22–3, 184–6
- companies
 - defined, 37
 - dissolving, 38–9
 - partner contributions to, 38
 - types of, 37–8
- companies registry (Mosajjil Alsharikat), 32–3
- Company Law, 31, 36–9
- Competition Law, 35–6
- conciliation
 - ambiguity and conflict, 186
 - and arbitration, 60, 155
 - in criminal disputes, 156–7
 - law of in Saudi Arabia, 154–6
 - question over use of, 153–4
- confidentiality of proceedings, 131
- consent to contracts, mutual, 68–9
- contracts
 - Altawarrouq transactions, 71
 - and arbitration, 66–7
 - conditions for forming, 68–9
 - governmental, and interest, 169
 - hire-purchase, 71
 - Khlar Almajlis (cancellation method), 69–70, 70n55
 - meaning of, 67–8
 - mutual consent to, 68–9
 - nominate/innominate, 70
 - non-binding, 72
 - under Shari'a, 67–73
 - under Shari'a law, 167–8
 - special conditions, 71
 - termination of, 72–3
- Convention of the Arab League of Nations on the Enforcement of Judgements 1952, 112–13
- Convention on the Recognition and Enforcement of Arbitral Awards 1958, 111–12, 140–1
- conventions on recognition/enforcement of foreign awards, 111–14, 138–42
- Copyright, Law of, 34–5
- Council of Ministers Resolutions
 - 58 of 1963, 107
 - 50 of 25/12/1379 H. (1960), 112
- counterfeit goods, 33–4
- Court of Appeal (Mahkamat Altamyeez), 18, 21
- courts, Shari'a, 19–22, 39
- Courts of First Instance, 21–2
- criminal disputes, conciliation in, 156–7
- deafness as obstacle to arbitrator role, 81
- default in appearance, 130
- disability as obstacle to arbitrator role, 81
- disputes
 - criminal, 156–7
 - resolution in the pre-Islamic era, 45–7
 - see also* arbitration; banking; commercial disputes
- Diwan Almazalim*
 - arbitration outside Saudi Arabia, 127–8
 - and banking disputes, 170
 - banking disputes arbitration, 160
 - Circular No. 7 15/5/1405 H., 141–2
 - decisions on right to arbitrate, 120–1
 - foreign arbitral awards, 141–2
 - presentation of foreign awards, 134
 - procedure after agreement approval, 119–20
 - reviews of arbitral awards, 162
 - settlement of disputes in Saudi Arabia, 170–4
 - supervisory authority, 124–6
- Diwan Almazalim* (Board of Grievances), 22, 23–4, 112–13
- duality in Saudi legal system, 161–2, 186
- Economic Knowledge City, 43
- economy of Saudi Arabia
 - current developments, 41–2
 - dependency on oil industry, 41
 - economic cities, 43
 - foreign investment, 44

- prior to oil discovery, 40–1
- privatization, 42–3
- regulation needs during development, 44
- Ed. Züblin v. Kingdom of Saudi Arabia*, 110–11
- Egypt, 31, 175–7
- enforcement of awards, 138–42
- equality
 - between parties, 135–7
 - treatment of parties, 90
- evidence, 85–9
- expert assistance, 135
- extrajudicial settlements, 133
- failure to appear, 130
- fair trial, rules of, 89–91, 131–2
- Faisal, King, 19
- false witness, 87
- fee apportioning, 138
- fiqh (Islamic jurisprudence)
 - agreed sources, 9–11
 - categories of, 9
 - defined, 8
 - definitions of arbitration under, 58–9
 - disputed sources of, 12
 - distinguished from Shari'a, Islamic and Saudi law, 5–7, 143
 - evolution of, 7–13
 - foru' alfiqh (branches of fiqh), 14–15
 - legal majority, 64
 - as practical application of Shari'a, 8
 - usul alfiqh, 9–12
- foreign awards, 111–14, 134, 138–42
- foreign investment
 - activities excluded from, 146
 - bilateral agreements, 114
 - and economic development, 44
 - encouragement of, 109–10
- foreign laws, influence of, 30–1
- foru' alfiqh (branches of fiqh), 14–15
- French law, influence of, 30
- GCC Commercial Arbitration Centre, 113–14
- General Mufti, 28–30
- gifts to judges, 89–90
- governmental contracts and interest, 169
- group ijthad, 9–10
- guarantees, 183
- Gulf Cooperation Council (GCC) Commercial Arbitration Centre, 113–14
- Hallaq, W., 13
- Hanafi school
 - appointment of arbitrators, 83
 - arbitration awards, 60
 - arbitration definition, 58
 - arbitrator's knowledge, 89
 - challenging arbitral awards, 92
 - characteristics, 15–16
 - impartiality of arbitrators, 89
 - number of arbitrators, 83
 - oath, 87
 - qualifications of arbitrators, 77–82
 - scope of arbitration under, 75–6
- Hanbali school
 - application of, 30
 - arbitrator's knowledge, 89
 - as basis of Saudi legal system, 144
 - challenging arbitral awards, 92
 - characteristics, 17
 - contracts, 67, 74–5
 - enforcement of arbitral awards, 91–2
 - impartiality of arbitrators, 90
 - influence on judges, 29
 - istislah, 145–6
 - legal status of arbitration, 59, 61
 - number of arbitrators, 83
 - presumptions, 89
 - qualifications of arbitrators, 77–81
 - scope of arbitration, 119
 - scope of arbitration under, 76–7
- Hay'at Altadqeqat Alshar'iyah, 18
- Hendryx, Frank, 108–9
- hidden qiyas, 12
- High Council of the Judiciary (Almajlis Al'ali Lilqada'), 20
- High Court (Almahkama Al'olia), 20–1
- hire-purchase contracts, 71
- ibadat, 14
- Ibn Qayem Aljaoziyah, 83–4
- Ibn Qodamah, M., 49, 50, 64, 144
- Ibn Saud, Muhammad, 25–7

- Ibn Taymiyyah, M., 67, 75, 78, 119, 144
- ICSID Convention, 110–11
- Al ijma', 10–11
 - Al ijtiḥad, 9–10
- impartiality of judges and arbitrators, 82, 89
- impediments to legal capacity, 65–6
- Implementing Rules of the Arbitration Act of 1983
- appearance of parties, 129–30
 - appointment of arbitrators, 122
 - arbitral awards making, 135–8
 - arbitration clauses, 120–1, 123–6
 - arbitration outside Saudi Arabia, 127–8
 - chairman's responsibilities, 132
 - confidentiality of proceedings, 131
 - default in appearance, 130
 - enforcement of arbitral awards, 138–42
 - enforcement of awards, 138
 - equality between parties, 135–7
 - exemption from regulatory procedures, 136
 - expert assistance, 135
 - extrajudicial settlements, 133
 - fair trial, rules of, 131–2
 - fee apportioning, 138
 - interrogation rules, 135
 - investigation measures, 134
 - language of communications, 127
 - legal capacity, 119
 - list of licensed arbitrators, 122
 - notification of parties, 128–9, 130
 - oral testimony of witnesses, 134–5
 - postponement of proceedings, 133
 - presentation of foreign awards, 134
 - procedure after agreement approval, 119–20
 - proceedings, responsibilities for, 126
 - qualifications of arbitrators, 121–2
 - records of proceedings, 133–4
 - redrafting of, 148–9
 - relocation of hearings, 135
 - scope of arbitration, 119
 - secretary's role, 126, 127
 - supervisory authority, 124–6
 - suspension of hearings, 131
 - terms of reference, exceeding, 137
 - typical procedure for proceedings, 132
 - unanimity of awards, 137
- incapacitated persons, 65–6
- independent judicial bodies, 22–4
- innominate/nominate contracts, 70
- insanity, 65
- insolvency, 66
- interest, bank
- under Banking Control Law of 1966, 152
 - under the banking regulations, 168–70
- Committee for the Settlement of Banking Disputes, 179–84
- Committee for the Settlement of Negotiable Instruments Disputes, 185
- duality in Saudi legal system, 161–2
- modification of legal status, 8, 23
- in neighbouring countries, 175–9
- under Shari'a, 2, 163–8
- international arbitration
- banking disputes, 160–1, 173–5
 - clauses in oil concession agreements, 97–8
 - enforcement of awards, 138–42
 - prohibition of, 107–9
 - recognition/enforcement of foreign awards, 111–14
 - Saudi Arbitration Team, 115
 - three phases of, 95–6
 - Wahat Alburaim (Buraimi Oasis) case, 95
 - see also* *Aramco v. Saudi Arabia*
- interrogation rules, 135
- intoxication, 66
- investigation measures, 134
- iqrar (admission), 86
- Islamic Investment Company of the Gulf (Bahamas) v. Symphony Gem NV and others*, 173–4
- Islamic jurisprudence (fiqh) *see* fiqh
- Islamic law
- arbitration in early stages of, 48–52
 - distinguished from Shari'a, fiqh and Saudi law, 5–7, 143
- istihab, 12
- istihsan, 12, 145–6
- istislah, 12, 145–6
- istisna contracts, 146, 146n158

- Japan Petroleum Trading Co., 98
- Jazan Economic City, 43
- judges
 - bribery of, 89–90
 - differences to arbitrators, 58
 - impartiality of, 82
 - responsibilities of, 132
 - training of, 187
 - see also* arbitrators
- judicial bodies
 - independent, 22–4
 - Ministry of Justice, 19–22
 - Shari'a courts, 19–22
- judicial decisions reports
 - Diwan, 24
 - first volume, 21
- judiciary, first regulation of, 17–18
- Ka'bah in Makkah, reconstruction of, 47
- Khiar Almajlis (cancellation method), 69–70, 70n55
- King Abdullah Economic City, 43
- Kula, Erhun, 165–6
- 'La Dharar wa La Dhirar' Hadeeth, 72
- language
 - of communications, 127
 - foreign arbitral awards, 141
 - of proceedings, 133
- Law of Commercial Papers, 185
- Law of Copyright, 34–5
- Law of Judiciary, 186–7
- Law of Negotiable Instruments, 184–5
- Law of Procedure before Shari'a Courts, 39, 129, 131, 132, 133, 136
- Law of Trademarks, 33
- legal capacity
 - age of majority, 63–4, 65
 - for arbitration, 119
 - impediments to, 65–6
 - incapacitated persons, 65–6
 - and insanity, 65
 - insolvency, 66
 - intoxication, 66
 - mortal illness, 65
 - prudence, 64
 - requirements for natural persons, 63–4
 - types of, 61–3
- legal personality, 62, 63
- legal system in Saudi Arabia
 - banking disputes under, 51–3
 - codes connected with commercial disputes, 33–40
 - conciliation, 154–6
 - duality in, 161–2, 186
 - first commerce regulations, 32–3
 - foreign laws, influence of, 30–1
 - foundation of, 17–19
 - Hanbali basis of, 144
 - impact of *Aramco v. Saudi Arabia*, 107–9
 - judicial bodies, 19–24
 - Mufti, role of, 28–30
 - women's role, 28
- lex arbitri*, 147–8
- litigation, arbitration distinguished from, 57–8, 135
- local custom, 12–13
- Mahkamah Altamyeez (court of appeal), 18, 21
- Majallat Alahkam Al Adliyah (Majalla)*, 13, 73
- Majlis Altojjar (traders' council), 32
- majority, age of, 63–4, 65
- Malik Ben Anas, 16
- Maliki school
 - almasaleh almursalalah, 146
 - appointment of arbitrators, 73
 - awards as unchallengeable, 91–2
 - characteristics, 16
 - legal status of arbitration, 58–9, 61
 - number of arbitrators, 83
 - qualifications of arbitrators, 77–80
 - scope of arbitration under, 76
 - termination of Office of Arbitrator, 85
- marriageable age, 64
- mathahib, 15–17
- maturity of arbitrators, 79
- men, arbitrators needing to be, 80–1, 121
- mental derangement, 65
- Midland International Trade Services Ltd and others v. Al-Sudairy and others*, 174
- Ministry of Commerce, 33
 - Circular No. 31/1/331/91 of 1979, 108

- counterfeit goods, 33–4
- Ministry of Justice, 19–22
- money lending
 - by banks under Banking Control Law of 1966, 152
 - under Shari'a, 163–8
 - see also* interest, bank
- mortal illness, 65
- Mosajjil Alsharikat (companies registry), 32–3
- muamalat, 14–15
- Mufti, role of, 28–30
- Muhammad (prophet)
 - arbitration during time of, 52–5
 - on conciliation, 154–5
 - on contract cancellation, 69
 - 'La Dharar wa La Dhirar' Hadeeth, 72
 - prohibition against accepting gifts, 89–90
- Muslim belief of arbitrators, 78–9, 121
- Muslim countries, application of Shari'a law in, 31–2
- muteness as obstacle to arbitrator role, 81
- mutual consent to contracts, 68–9

- nationality of arbitrators, 121
- natural personality, 62, 63–4
- Negotiable Instruments Law, 185
- Negotiable Instruments Office, 22–3
- neighbouring countries
 - banking disputes and interest in, 175–9
- New York Convention 1958, 111–12, 140–2
- nizam sair almuhakamat Alshar'iyah, 18
- nominate/innominate contracts, 70
- non-binding contracts, 72
- notification of parties, 128–9, 130
- number of arbitrators, 83, 121

- oath (qasam/yameen), 87–8
- Office for the Settlement of Commercial Papers Disputes, 22, 184–5
- oil industry
 - arbitration prior to boom, 96–8
 - clauses in oil concession agreements, 97–8
 - see also* *Aramco v. Saudi Arabia*
- Onassis, Aristotle, 105
- Onassis Agreement, 99–100
- OPEC, establishment of, 108
- oral testimony of witnesses, 86–7, 134–5
- Ottoman Code of 1850, 30
- Overseas Private Investment Corporation (OPIC), 109n64

- partnerships under Company Law, 37–9
- Pérez Alfonso, Juan Pablo, 108
- Petroleum Development Ltd v. Sheikh of Abu Dhabi*, 106
- Petromin Oil Company, 98
- plaintiffs
 - burden of proof on, 86
 - defined, 85–6
- politics
 - disputes during Prophet Muhammad's time, 53–5
 - and Wahhabism, 26–7
- postponement of proceedings, 133
- precedence, no sense of, 148
- presumptions (qara'en), 89
- price fixing, 36
- Prince Abdul-Aziz Ben Mosaed Economic City, 43
- privatization, 42–3
- proceedings
 - chairman's responsibilities, 132
 - confidentiality of, 131
 - language, official, 133
 - postponement of, 133
 - records of, 133–4
 - relocation of hearings, 135
 - responsibilities for, 126
 - suspension of, 131
 - typical procedure for, 132
- Provisional Act to Reform the Shari'a Courts, 18
- proxy representation of parties, 129–30
- prudence, 64, 79
- public morals and interests, 145–6
- public policy in Saudi Arabia, 142–8
- public sector, reform of, 42–3
- publicity of proceedings, 131

- qara'en (presumptions), 89
- qasam/yameen, 87–8

- qualifications of arbitrators, 78–82, 121–2, 122–3
- Quran, arbitration in, 48–51
- recognition of arbitration clauses, 123–6
- reconstruction of the Ka'bah in Makkah, 47
- records of proceedings, 133–4
- Regulation Governing Bids for Government Procurement, Sales and Leases, 31
- reinforced steel situation, 36
- relocation of hearings, 135
- remuneration of arbitrators, 83–4
- residence of arbitrators, 121–2
- Resolution (219) 6/9/1423 (11/11/2002), 42
- revocation of arbitral awards, 92
- riba *see* interest, bank
- rights of third parties, 93
- Riyadh Convention for Judicial Cooperation 1983, 139–40
- Royal Decrees
 - 5737, 102
 - 7/5/23165, 115
 - 23/10/1381, 18
 - 10/22/5/5703, 33
 - 29/10/1386 H. (1967), 18
 - 8/729 of 1407 H. (1987), 172
 - 51/M 17/02/1402 H. (1981), 141
 - M/6, 20/7/1965, 36
 - M/51, 112
 - M/3 31/07/2003, 40
 - (M/6) 22/3/1385 H. (1965), 31
 - (M/6) 24/2/1386 H., 31
 - (M/64) of 1385 H. (1975), 19
- rules of evidence, 85–9
- rules of fair trial, 89–91
- Saleh, N., 51–2
- Saudi Arabia
 - attitude changes from 1970s, 109–11
 - codification of Shari'a law, 14
 - conciliation practice in, 156–9
 - ICSID Convention membership, 110–11
 - kingdom as inseparable from religion, 144–5
 - lex arbitri*, 147–8
 - precedence, no sense of, 148
 - public policy in, 142–8
 - see also* international arbitration; legal system in Saudi Arabia
 - Saudi Arabian Maritime Tankers Company (Satco), 99–100
 - Saudi Arabian Monetary Agency (SAMA)
 - see* Committee for the Settlement of Banking Disputes
 - Saudi Arbitration Team, 115
 - Saudi law
 - distinguished from Shari'a, fiqh and Islamic law, 5–7
 - as inseparable from religion, 144–5 and Wahhabism, 25–7
 - see also* legal system in Saudi Arabia
 - Sausser-Hall, Georges, 105
 - Sayen, G., 54
 - Schacht, J., 7
 - schools of thought in Islam
 - application of Shari'a law, 77–8
 - appointment of arbitrators, 83
 - and arbitration clauses, 74–5
 - arbitration under, 58–61
 - attempt to codify, 30
 - characteristics of each, 15–17
 - number of arbitrators, 83
 - qualifications of arbitrators, 78–82
 - scope of arbitration, 75–7, 119
 - seat of the arbitration, 93
 - secretary of the authority, role of, 126, 127
 - Shafi'e school
 - challenging arbitral awards, 92
 - characteristics, 16–17
 - legal status of arbitration, 59, 61
 - number of arbitrators, 83
 - qualifications of arbitrators, 77–80, 82
 - scope of arbitration under, 76
 - shahadah (oral testimony), 86–7, 134–5
 - share trading, 39–40
 - Shari'a law
 - application of, 77–8
 - application of in Muslim countries, 31–2
 - arbitrators' knowledge of, 79–80
 - codification of, 13–15
 - contracts under, 67–73, 167–8
 - courts, 19–22, 39

- distinguished from fiqh and Islamic and Saudi law, 5–7, 143
- fiqh as practical application of, 8
- first attempt at codification, 1–2, 143–4
- interest under, 163–8
- legal status of arbitration under, 59–61
- schools of thought, 15–17
- sources of, 143–4
- Sharikat Abdan, 37–8
- Sharikat Amlak, 37
- Sharikat Inan, 37
- Sharikat Modarabah, 38
- Sharikat Mofawadah, 37
- Sharikat Oqoud, 37
- Sharikat Wojouh, 37
- Sheikh, the, 25–7, 29
- shorout (special conditions for contracts), 71
- special conditions for contracts, 71
- Standard Oil Company of California (Socal), 97
- stock market, 39–40
- sulh, 155, 157
- summary courts, establishment of, 18
- Sunna, 51–2
- Sunni Islam, 15–17
- supervisory authority
 - banking disputes, 152
 - over proceedings, 124–6, 138
- supply shortages, 36
- suspension of hearings, 131
- Tahkeen* incident, 54
- termination of contracts, 72–3
- termination of Office of Arbitrator, 84–5
- third parties, rights of, 93
- Trademarks, Law of, 33
- traders' council (Majlis Altojjar), 32
- training of judges, 187
- translation
 - in court, 90
 - foreign arbitral awards, 141
- unanimity of awards, 93, 137
- United Arab Emirates (UAE), 177–9
- United Nations Convention on the Recognition and Enforcement of Arbitral Awards 1958, 111–12, 140–1
- urf (local custom), 1, 12–13
- usul alfiqh, 9–12
- Wahat Alburaim (Buraimi Oasis) case, 95
- Wahhabism, 17, 25–7
- wakalah, 129–30
- war, arbitration in, 53–5
- wheat flour situation, 36
- witnesses, oral testimony of, 86–7, 134–5
- women
 - arbitrators in pre-Islamic era, 45
 - role in Saudi legal system, 28
 - as unable to be arbitrators, 80–1
- written evidence, 88
- yameen/qasam, 87–8